Huntingdonshire

DI STRICT COUNCIL

NOTICE OF ITEM OF BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE
SECTION 151 OFFICER AFTER CONSULTATION WITH THE
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR FOR RESIDENT SERVICES AND

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE

Date when item(s) to
be considered:

Executive Councillor for
Resident Services and
Corporate Performance

Subject of item to be
considered

Summary of item to be
considered

Contact for further
supporting
information

Thursday, 4 December 2025

Councillor S Ferguson

Business Rates — Rural Settlement List

To review and determine boundaries of
Rural settlements, that is settlements
with a population of less than 3,000, to
facilitate the award of Rural Rate Relief
in accordance with s42(b) of The Local
Government Finance Act 1988, as
amended by The Local Government and
Rating Act 1997.

Katie Kelly, Revenues and Benefits
Manager

= 01480 388151
Katie.Kelly@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Lydia Morrison, Interim  Corporate
Director (Finance and Resources) and
Section 151 Officer

Y 01480 388178
Lydia.Morrison@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

This Notice has been copied to the Chairman of the relevant Overview and

Scrutiny Panel.

Dated this 26 day of November 2025

BUSINESS RATES — RURAL SETTLEMENT LIST (Pages 3 - 16)

To review and determine boundaries of Rural settlements, that is
settlements with a population of less than 3,000, to facilitate the award
of Rural Rate Relief in accordance with s42(b) of The Local
Government Finance Act 1988, as amended by The Local Government

and Rating Act 1997.


mailto:Katie.Kelly@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:Lydia.Morrison@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

Public
Key Decision - Yes

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Title/Subject Matter:  Business Rates — Rural Settlement List
Meeting/Date: Corporate Leadership Team — 20" October 2025

Executive Portfolio: Clir S Ferguson — Executive Councillor for
Resident Services and Corporate Performance

Report by: Revenues and Benefits Manager

Ward(s) affected: All

Executive Summary:

The Local Government and Rating Act 1997 requires that each rating authority
must compile and maintain a Rural Settlement List comprising of settlements with
a population of less than 3,000.

The Rural Settlement List allows Huntingdonshire District Council to grant
business rates relief to qualifying post offices, village shops, public houses and
petrol stations to support small rural businesses and communities.

Following a review of the latest population data estimates available from
Cambridgeshire County Council, no changes are proposed to the list for 2026/27.

Recommendation:

The Corporate Leadership Team is

RECOMMENDED

to endorse that the Rural Settlement List is approved by the Section 151 officer,
in consultation with the Executive Councillor for Resident Services and
Corporate Performance, and published by 315t December 2025 to facilitate the

award of Rural Business Rates Relief for the financial year commencing 15t April
2026.

Page 3




1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The Council is required to review and determine boundaries of Rural
settlements, that is settlements with a population of less than 3,000, to
facilitate the award of Rural Rate Relief in accordance with s42(b) of The
Local Government Finance Act 1988, as amended by The Local
Government and Rating Act 1997.

It is a requirement of the above regulations that boundaries are set and
published by 315t December each year in order to facilitate the award of
Rural Rate Relief.

2. BACKGROUND

Rural rate relief is applied to certain types of business within a rural
settlement. It can be awarded where the only village shop or post office in
the settlement has a rateable value of up to £8,500 or the only public house
or petrol station has a rateable value of up to £12,500.

The Local Government Finance Act 1988 sets out that it is the
responsibility of the local authority to determine any settlements which:

a) Are wholly or partly within the authorities’ area; and

b) Appear to have a population of not more than 3,000; and

c) Are wholly or partly within a rural area designated by the Secretary of
State for the purposes of rate relief scheme.

A rural settlement does not necessarily have to follow ward or parish
boundaries, and a settlement can be defined by splitting an area based on
other characteristics, such as geographical or demographic features.

3. OPTIONS CONSIDERED/ANALYSIS

Towns and parishes within Huntingdonshire are all designated as one of
three types of settlement:

Urban settlement - population above 3,000

Rural settlement - population below 3,000

Defined settlements — Where the total parish population exceeds 3,000,
but a specific area within that parish has been “defined” as a separate rural
settlement.

The current rural settlements list has been reviewed to take account of the
latest statistical population data available from Cambridgeshire County
Council. As a result of the review it has been determined that no changes
to the list are required.

Details of the qualifying rural settlements are shown in APPENDIX A, and
map of all settlements can be found in APPENDIX B.

The following parishes are classified as defined settlements in order to
maximise the number of businesses that benefit from rural rate relief:

Page 4



41

4.2

6.1

7.1

4.3

Ramsey Forty Foot, Ramsey Heights, Ramsey Mereside, Ramsey St
Mary’s, and Diddington.

Maps of these defined settlements are shown in APPENDIX C.

4. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
AND/OR CORPORATE OBJECTIVES

The award of mandatory Rural Rate Relief to qualifying shops, pubs and
petrol stations in rural settlements directly contributes to the priorities set
out with the Corporate Plan to improve the quality of life for local people,
and to create a better Huntingdonshire for future generations.

Providing business rates relief to eligible small businesses also aligns with
the Huntingdon Futures Place Strategy, supporting vital community
amenities in rural areas.

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Council has a legal duty to set and publish the rural settlements list by
31st December each year.

6. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Qualifying businesses are entitled to 100% mandatory relief on their
business rates. To date in 2025, the existing Rural Settlements List has
facilitated the award of Rural Rate Relief totalling £66,795.69 across 24
qualifying businesses.

7. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS

The review of the latest population statistics ensures that the classification
of urban, rural and defined settlements reflects the current population
figures and rural rate relief is being awarded appropriately.

8. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED
Appendix A — List of Rural Settlements

Appendix B — Rural Settlements Map
Appendix C — Defined Areas Map

CONTACT OFFICER

Name/Job Title:  Katie Kelly / Revenues and Benefits Manager
Tel No: 01480 388151
Email: katie.kelly@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A - List of Rural Settlements

Abbotsley

Abbots Ripton
Alconbury

Alconbury Weston
Alwalton

Barham and Woolley
Bluntisham

Brington and Molesworth
Broughton

Buckworth

Bury

Bythorn and Keyston
Catworth

Chesterton

Colne

Conington

Covington

Denton and Caldecote
Diddington*

Earith

Easton

Ellington

Elton

Farcet

Folksworth and Washingley
Glatton

Grafham

Great and Little Gidding
Great Gransden

Great Paxton

Great Staughton
Haddon

Hail Weston

Hamerton and Steeple Gidding

*Defined Rural Settlement

Hemingford Abbots
Hilton

Holme
Holywell-cum-Needingworth
Houghton and Wyton
Kimbolton and Stonely
Kings Ripton

Leighton Bromswold
Morborne

Offord Cluny & Offord D'Arcy
Old Hurst

Old Weston

Perry
Pidley-cum-Fenton
Ramsey Forty Foot*
Ramsey St Mary’s*
Ramsey Mereside*
Ramsey Heights*
Sibson-cum-Stibbington
Southoe and Midloe
Spaldwick

Stilton

Stow Longa

Tilbrook

Toseland

Upton and Coppingford
Upwood and the Raveleys
Waresley-cum-Tetworth
Water Newton

Winwick

Wistow

Woodhurst
Woodwalton
Wyton-on-the-Hill
Yelling

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



‘.... w E

Sibson-cum-Stibbington

Water,Newton| Alwalton

Elton
‘Haddon! Farcet]
olksworth and Ramsey St

Mary S Ramsey,
[Dentonfand Mereside
Caldecote

Wood,Walton @'-117
:and the)
Wistow;

Hamerton
Ie Upton and
Coppingford m
\Weston] Abbots Ripton Broughton

Old\Weston
Buckworth|

oo Leigion
Bythorn and| The \Woodhurst
Keyston ‘Barham and| mm Stukeleys Wyton-on-the-Hill
Woolley) Bluntisham|
Houghton St. Ives
and Wyton Holywell-cum-Needingworth
g Hemingford
Brampton Grey

Godmanchester Hemingford
Grafham Abbots
Buckden
Offord

|dd|ngton D Arcy,

staughion and Midios

Great]

Hail Weston| Little Paxton PRaxton

Joseland

Yelling;

Abbotsley,

0 1 2 4 Miles

- Defined Rural Settlements *

* Some rural areas have been split to ensure
they continue to benefit for rural rate relief.

© Crown copyright and database right 2024. Ordnance Survey Licence No. AC0000849958

Date: 06 December 2024

Produced by:

Urban Settlements

Section/Department: Spatial Team

Scale:

1:200,000 @A4

J:\WORKING\3C_GIS_support\HDC\settlements\projects P age @]



file:J:/WORKING/3C_GIS_support/HDC/settlements/projects

This page is intentionally left blank



o

=
S
=

i -

ChsAm, SPOTtS

o1 —__Centre
\Jb};—q

Eorty Foot:

P

Rural Settlement List
Defined Boundaries

L d N

New Parishes

| E::-j New Parishes

Parish Area 1:30,000

- Ramsey Forty Foot

i| Huntingdonshire

DISTRICT COUNCIL

NN
/ ™

o

Rowells Fm

Page 11




- 7]

— —
7 " . " o 4 Rural Settlement List
Noghtlngal S hiny Il Defined Boundaries
qg:or r o \
\ N
Wl ‘m-jl. ..... Ak
R AR B Ramsey Heights 1:18,000
/x
‘Huntingdonshire
\ oI cT ou cIL
A 4 = i
Wood
Welton CP | e

o0
18 7
.
= )
o
4y
T
N | p Common
‘0.: I A Fm
2 3 Z
12 T ¥ SSnagag, "0

Page 12



Rural Settlement List
Defined Boundaries

Legend N
New
E::-j New Parishes
Pari
R LaEh e 1:30,000

- Ramsey Mereside

/\
“Huntingd onshire

DISTRICT COUNCIL
Reprodiced fom the rdnance Survey Magping wi thepermision of
s Coniroller o Her Majestys Statonery Ofice (C) Crown Copyrght

oy faat o

procecuton or el proceedings.  HOG 1

& A
F 6 7 Grange
093 ';a

Y
P

v

ar 'ott's}/
ve Fm 2N
)
P
2
,/
/4

N

RG
N

4

Hills Fm
-

iddle~Mo

T

@

’9/,,@
/d /¥

o

{ﬁ’f

o

ax

adall's Fm

L = Bodsey
5 i . BHouse
AFBrick Kilns
AFm \
W
R 6
N
2
ockin

! D

7,
9%

Page 13



Ramsey £St Manys

Rural Settlement List
Defined Boundaries

Legend N
New Parishes
E -.-J. New Parishes

i
Parish Area 1:22,000

- Ramsey - St Marys

/Huntmgd onshire

and Feurtt
Rea

Ne 7K

N

Page 14



-+ —— AN

Rural Settlements List
Defined Boundaries

Legend ;
New Parishes +
:_:__} New Parish Boundary N :
Parish Area #
[ piddington 1:25,000

/,,'——u.‘"
‘Huntingdonshire

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Pl e IC TS T T T N

® Crown copyright and database right 2024.
Ordnance Survey Licence No.'Aqopoqsmss —

_______ y ; ‘
"""" A

=

Diddington

-~
=8

.

—— 1L . B 2 Y Y / o
~EBaen G v 3 | \WSORSYSY A

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Rural Rate Relief
	1.	PURPOSE of the report
	2.	BACKGROUND
	3.	OPTIONS CONSIDERED/ANALYSIS
	4.	LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES  AND/OR  CORPORATE OBJECTIVES
	7.	REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS
	8.	LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED
	APPENDIX A - List of Rural Settlements
	APPENDIX B - Rural Settlement Map
	APPENDIX C -  Defined Areas Map




